

**OFFICIAL JOURNAL**  
**OF THE**  
**HOUSE OF**  
**REPRESENTATIVES**  
**OF THE**  
**STATE OF LOUISIANA**

**SEVENTEENTH DAY'S PROCEEDINGS**

**Forty-second Regular Session of the Legislature  
Under the Adoption of the  
Constitution of 1974**

House of Representatives  
State Capitol  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Monday, April 11, 2016

The House of Representatives was called to order at 2:09 P.M., by the Honorable Taylor Barras, Speaker of the House of Representatives.

**Morning Hour**

**ROLL CALL**

The roll being called, the following members answered to their names:

**PRESENT**

Mr. Speaker	Franklin	Leopold
Abraham	Gaines	Lopinto
Abramson	Garofalo	Lyons
Adams	Gisclair	Mack
Amedee	Glover	Magee
Anders	Guinn	McFarland
Armes	Hall	Miguez
Bacala	Harris, J.	Miller, D.
Bagley	Harris, L.	Miller, G.
Bagneris	Havard	Montoucet
Berthelot	Hazel	Moreno
Billiot	Henry	Morris, Jay
Bishop	Hensgens	Morris, Jim
Bouie	Hilferty	Norton
Broadwater	Hill	Pearson
Brown, C.	Hodges	Pierre
Brown, T.	Hoffmann	Pope
Carmody	Hollis	Price
Carpenter	Horton	Pugh
Carter, G.	Howard	Pylant
Carter, R.	Hunter	Reynolds
Carter, S.	Huval	Richard
Chaney	Ivey	Schexnayder
Coussan	Jackson	Seabaugh
Cox	James	Shadoin
Cromer	Jefferson	Simon
Danahay	Jenkins	Smith
Davis	Johnson, M.	Stokes
DeVillier	Johnson, R.	Talbot
Dwight	Jones	Thibaut
Edmonds	Landry, N.	White
Emerson	Landry, T.	Willmott

Falconer  
Foil  
Total - 101

LeBas  
Leger

Zeringue

The Speaker announced that there were 101 members present and a quorum.

**Prayer**

Prayer was offered by Dr. Ken Ward, Coordinator of Chaplain Services.

**Pledge of Allegiance**

Rep. Hilferty led the House in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.

**Reading of the Journal**

On motion of Rep. Hill, the reading of the Journal was dispensed with.

On motion of Rep. Hill, the Journal of April 7, 2016, was adopted.

**Petitions, Memorials, and  
Communications**

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read:

**Message from the Senate**

**SENATE BILLS**

April 11, 2016

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has finally passed the following Senate Bills:

Senate Bill Nos. 18, 179, 215, and 258

Respectfully submitted,

GLENN A. KOEPP  
Secretary of the Senate

**Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions  
on First Reading**

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on first reading were taken up, read, and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**SENATE BILL NO. 18—**

BY SENATORS PEACOCK, BOUDREAUX, CORTEZ, LONG, MILKOVICH  
AND MIZELL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 11:102(B)(1), (2), (3)(introductory paragraph), (a), (b), (c), and (d)(introductory paragraph), (i), (ii), (iii), and (iv), (4), and (5)(a) and (b), (C), and (D), 102.1(B)(2)(b), (3)(a)(i), (4), (5), and (6) and (C)(2), (3)(a) and (c), (4), (5), and (6), 102.2(B)(2)(a), (3)(a)(i), (4), and (5) and (C)(2), (3)(a) and (c), (4), (5), and (6), 102.3, 542(A), (B), (C), (E), and (F), 883.1(A), (B), (C), (E), and (F), 927(B)(2)(a)(introductory paragraph) and (i) and (b)(i) and (3)(a), 1145.1(A), (B), (C), (D), and (E), and 1332(A), (B), (C), (D), (E), and (F), to enact R.S. 11:23, 102(E) and (F), 102.1(A)(4), (B)(3)(a)(iv), and (D), 102.2(A)(4), (B)(3)(a)(iv), and (D), 102.4, 102.5, 102.6, 542(D) and 883.1(D), and to repeal R.S. 11:102(B)(3)(d)(v), (vi), (vii), and (viii), 542(G), 883.1(G) and (H), 1145.1(F), and 1332(G), to provide for actuarial determinations and application of retirement system

funds without allowing, authorizing, or granting benefit improvements; to provide for the determination of required employer contributions and application of investment earnings to certain debts and accounts; to prioritize excess return allocations; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 179—**  
BY SENATOR RISER

AN ACT

To enact Chapter 21-B of Title 25 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 25:951 through 959, relative to the Louisiana Human Remains Protection and Control Act; to provide relative to the control and management of human remains; to provide relative to legislative intent; to provide definitions; to provide penalties; to provide exemptions; to provide relative to enforcement; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 215—**  
BY SENATOR CARTER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 26:920(B) and (C), relative to the office of alcohol and tobacco control; to provide for the procedure for appeal of tobacco dealers; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 258—**  
BY SENATOR LUNEAU

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 22:997.1, relative to the refilling of topical ophthalmic prescriptions; to require coverage for refills under certain circumstances; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Introduction of Resolutions,  
House and House Concurrent**

The following members introduced the following entitled House and House Concurrent Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 54—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHEXNAYDER  
A RESOLUTION

To commend Alex Heintze and Justin Watts upon winning the TNT Fireworks 2015 Costa Bassmaster High School National Championship.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Schexnayder, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 55—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE MORENO  
A RESOLUTION

To commend the Louisiana Tumor Registry at the Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center in New Orleans.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Moreno, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 56—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE LEGER  
A RESOLUTION

To commend Dr. Augusto Ochoa, director of the Stanley S. Scott Cancer Center at the Louisiana State University (LSU) Health Sciences Center in New Orleans.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Leger, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 57—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHEXNAYDER  
A RESOLUTION

To commend the Latcher High School girls' powerlifting team for winning its tenth consecutive Division III state title.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Schexnayder, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 58—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE LANCE HARRIS  
A RESOLUTION

To amend and readopt House Rule 8.21(A) of the Rules of Order of the House of Representatives and to adopt House Rule 6.14(C) of the Rules of Order of the House of Representatives to provide relative to conference committees and conference committee reports.

Read by title.

Lies over under the rules.

**House and House Concurrent Resolutions  
Lying Over**

The following House and House Concurrent Resolutions lying over were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 59—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE MARCELLE  
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To create the Louisiana Law Enforcement Body Camera Implementation Task Force to study and make recommendations regarding the requirements for implementation and development of best procedures for the use of the body cameras and policies for access to and use of body camera recordings by law enforcement agencies in this state, and to provide for a written report of its recommendations and findings not later than sixty days prior to the 2017 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above resolution was referred to the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

**House Bills and Joint Resolutions on  
Second Reading to be Referred**

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading to be referred to committees were taken up, read, and referred to committees, as follows:

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Thibaut, the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works was discharged from further consideration of House Bill No. 1013.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1013—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE THIBAUT

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 32:705(D), relative to transferring ownership of a motor vehicle, which has been declared a total loss, to an insurance company; to provide for the validity of the document transferring ownership; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Thibaut, the bill was recommitted to the Committee on Insurance.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Hoffmann, the Committee on Appropriations was discharged from further consideration of House Bill No. 606.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 606—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE HOFFMANN

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1061.6(A) and to enact Chapter 1-A of Title 36 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 36:21, relative to authorized uses of public funds; to prohibit certain uses of public funds by institutions, boards, commissions, departments, agencies, officials, and employees of the state or its political subdivisions; to prohibit entities that perform abortions from receiving public funding for any purpose; to provide for construction of the prohibition; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Hoffmann, the bill was recommitted to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading to be Referred**

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading to be referred were taken up, read, and referred to committees, as follows:

**SENATE BILL NO. 33—**

BY SENATOR GATTI

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:87.3, relative to the sale and transport of fetal organs and body parts; to prohibit the sale of fetal organs and body parts resulting from an induced abortion; to prohibit the transport of fetal organs and body parts with the intent to engage in a prohibited sale; to provide definitions; to provide penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Health and Welfare.

**SENATE BILL NO. 42—**

BY SENATOR RISER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Civil Procedure Art. 4843(E), to enact R.S. 33:455 and to repeal R.S. 13:1899(E) and 2115, relative to courts; to abolish the City Court of Winnsboro and the offices thereof; to establish the Mayor's Court for the City of Winnsboro; to provide effective dates; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

**SENATE BILL NO. 50—**

BY SENATOR GARY SMITH

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:1(1.1), 190(D), 401(2), and 408(C)(3), relative to autocycles; to amend the definition of autocycle applicable to operators and passengers for a helmet exemption; to amend the definition of autocycle applicable for an exemption for certain driver's license endorsements for operators; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

**SENATE BILL NO. 62—**

BY SENATOR MARTINY

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 32:144(C) and (D), relative to parking; to provide for parking in a residence district; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

**SENATE BILL NO. 73—**

BY SENATORS WHITE AND CARTER

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:108(B)(1)(e), relative to the crime of resisting an officer; to add intentional crossing of a police cordon to the definition of "obstruction of" an officer; to provide additional definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

**SENATE BILL NO. 205—**

BY SENATOR CARTER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 26:901(34), relative to the office of alcohol and tobacco control; to provide for the definition of tobacco wholesale dealers; to provide for required sales of tobacco wholesale dealers; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

**SENATE BILL NO. 255—**

BY SENATOR MORRELL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 26:802(A)(4) and to enact R.S. 26:802(A)(15) and 813, relative to alcoholic beverages; to provide for business relations of wholesalers and suppliers; to provide for obligations of successors; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

**SENATE BILL NO. 261—**

BY SENATOR LUNEAU

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 56:721 and 722(A), relative to parish game and fish preserves; to authorize two or more parish governing authorities to establish a game and fish preserve

when the preserve is located in multiple adjoining parishes; to provide for terms, conditions, requirements, and procedures; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Municipal, Parochial and Cultural Affairs.

**SENATE BILL NO. 296—**  
BY SENATOR PETERSON

AN ACT

To authorize and provide for the transfer of certain state rights and property in Orleans Parish; to provide for the applicable property descriptions; to provide for reservation of mineral rights; to provide terms and conditions; to provide an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Natural Resources and Environment.

**SENATE BILL NO. 336—**  
BY SENATOR MARTINY

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:2150.1(2), (4)(a), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (10), (11), (12) and (13), 2152(B)(3) and (4), 2154(A)(2) and (5), 2155(A), (B), (C), and (D), 2156 (G), the introductory paragraph of 2156.1(A), 2156.1(C), the introductory paragraph of (D)(1), (D)(1)(c), and (D)(2), the introductory paragraph of 2157(A), 2159(C), 2162(L), 2167, 2170(A)(2), 2171.1, 2171.2(B), the introductory paragraph of 2175.1(A), 2175.1(A)(1), (2), (4)(a), (7), (B) and (D), the introductory paragraph of 2175.3(A), 2175.3(A)(1), (2), (3), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9) and (10) and (B), 2175.4, and 2175.6 and to enact R.S. 37:2150.1(14), (15) and (16), 2156.1(D)(4) and (5) and (M)(4), 2158(A)(12), 2167.2, 2167.3, and 2170(A)(4), (5), (6), and (7) and to repeal R.S. 37:2150.1(4.1) and (8.1), 2171, 2175.2, 2175.3(11), and 2175.5, relative to the State Licensing Board for Contractors; to provide certain definitions, terms, procedures, conditions, and effects; to provide relative to board composition and procedure; to provide relative to license issuance; to provide certain requirements and exceptions; to provide relative to residential contracting; to provide certain sanctions and penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Under the rules, the above bill was referred to the Committee on Commerce.

**House Bills and Joint Resolutions on  
Second Reading Reported by Committee**

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on second reading reported by committee were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 81—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE BROADWATER  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 44:33.1, relative to public records; to require public bodies to make certain information concerning the custodian of records publicly available; to provide for the manner in which such information is required to be made publicly available; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Danahay, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 141—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE LEGER  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 24:521(A), (C), and (D), relative to actuarial notes; to require certain content in an actuarial note; to provide relative to certain legislative procedures regarding obtaining actuarial notes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

On motion of Rep. Danahay, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 142—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE MIGUEZ  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1379.3(C)(6) and (10), relative to concealed handgun permits; to provide with respect to eligibility to obtain a concealed handgun permit; to provide that persons convicted of certain offenses are not ineligible to obtain a concealed handgun permit; to provide for applicability; to provide limitations; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 142 by Representative Miguez

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 16, after "felony." delete the remainder of the line and delete lines 17 and 18 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, delete lines 1 and 2 in their entirety and insert the following:

"A conviction for a felony offense which has been expunged pursuant to the provisions of R.S. 44:9 or Title XXXIV of the Code of Criminal Procedure shall not be considered a conviction for the purposes of this Paragraph if ten years have elapsed since the completion of the resident's probation, parole, or suspended sentence. A conviction for which a person has been pardoned by the governor shall not be considered a conviction for purposes of this Paragraph, unless that pardon expressly provides that the person may not ship, transport, possess, or receive firearms."

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, at the end of line 13, delete "Any" and delete lines 14 through 18 in their entirety and insert the following:

"A conviction for a felony offense which has been expunged pursuant to the provisions of R.S. 44:9 or Title XXXIV of the Code of Criminal Procedure shall not be considered a conviction for the purposes of this Paragraph if ten years have elapsed since the completion of the resident's probation, parole, or suspended sentence."

A conviction for which a person has been pardoned by the governor shall not be considered a conviction for purposes of this Paragraph, unless that pardon expressly provides that the person may not ship, transport, possess, or receive firearms."

On motion of Rep. Mack, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Mack, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 270—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE POPE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:1(D) and to repeal R.S. 17:2, relative to the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education; to provide relative to vacancies in elective positions on the board; to provide relative to special elections to fill vacancies in elective positions on the board; to remove certain redundant provisions of law relative to the board; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to Original House Bill No. 270 by Representative Pope

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 3, after "Education;" delete the remainder of the line and insert "to provide relative to vacancies in elective positions on the board; to provide relative to special elections to fill vacancies in"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, delete lines 4 and 5 and insert the following:

"(2)(a) If a vacancy occurs in the office of an elected member of the board, the governor shall be notified of the vacancy in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Louisiana Election Code.

(b) If a vacancy occurs in the office of an elected member of the board and the remaining portion of the term is more than one year, the special election to fill the vacancy shall be ordered and held in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Louisiana Election Code."

On motion of Rep. Danahay, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Danahay, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 546—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE HUNTER

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 14:71.4, relative to misappropriation without violence; to create the crime of homestead exemption fraud; to provide for elements of the crime; to provide criminal penalties; to provide for restitution; to provide definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 546 by Representative Hunter

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 4, after "penalties;" and before "to" insert "to provide for restitution;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, delete lines 10 through 12 in their entirety and add the following:

"B. Any person who intentionally claims more than one homestead exemption shall be fined not more than five hundred dollars, imprisoned for not more than six months, or both.

C. In addition to the penalties provided in Subsection B of this Section, a person convicted of a violation of this Section shall be ordered to make full restitution to the state or local governmental subdivision which has suffered a financial loss as a result of the offense. If a person ordered to make restitution pursuant to this Section is found to be indigent and therefore unable to make restitution in full at the time of conviction, the court shall order a periodic payment plan consistent with the person's financial ability."

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, at the beginning of line 13, change "C." to "D."

On motion of Rep. Mack, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Mack, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 693—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE JIMMY HARRIS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 14:95.2(A), (B)(3) and (4), and (D) and to enact R.S. 14:95.2(B)(5) and (C)(9) and (10), relative to carrying a firearm or dangerous weapon on school property; to expand the prohibition to include public parks, playgrounds, and recreational facilities; to provide definitions; to provide for exceptions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 693 by Representative Jimmy Harris

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 3, after "14:95.2(B)(5)" and before "relative" delete the comma "," and insert "and (C)(9) and (10),"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 5, after "definitions;" and before "and" insert "to provide for exceptions;"

# Page 6 HOUSE

17th Day's Proceedings - April 11, 2016

## AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 8, after "R.S. 14:95.2(B)(5)" and before "hereby" delete "is" and insert "and (C)(9) and (10) are"

## AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, at the beginning of line 12, change "A." to "A.(1)"

## AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, line 13, after "function," delete the remainder of the line and on line 14, delete "used as a public park, playground, recreational facility."

## AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, after line 19, add the following:

"(2) Carrying a firearm, or dangerous weapon as defined in R.S. 14.2, by a person on property used as a public park, playground, or recreational facility is unlawful and shall be defined as possession of any firearm or dangerous weapon on one's person at any time while on the property used as a public park, playground, or recreational facility."

## AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, delete lines 4 through 8 in their entirety and insert the following:

"(3) "Public park, playground, or recreational facility" means any building or area owned by a political subdivision that is open to the public and used or operated as a park, playground, or recreational facility. "Public park, playground, or recreational facility" shall not include parks and recreational areas administered by the office of state parks in the Department of Culture, Recreation and Tourism or wildlife management areas administered by the Department of Wildlife and Fisheries."

## AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, delete line 13 in its entirety and insert the following:

"C. The provisions of this Section shall not apply to:

\* \* \*

(9) The possession of a firearm on property used as a public park, playground, or recreational facility by a person who holds a valid certificate as a living historian in the use, storage, and handling of black powder issued by the Louisiana office of state parks for the purpose of historic reenactments if the firearm is a black powder weapon which is an antique firearm as defined in 18 U.S.C. 921(a)(16), or an antique device exempted from the term "destructive device" in 18 U.S.C. 921(a)(4) and that person has permission from the governing authority having jurisdiction over the public park, playground, or recreational facility for the reenactment.

(10) The possession of a firearm on property used as a public park, playground, or recreational facility by a person who holds a valid concealed handgun permit pursuant to R.S. 40:1379.1 or 1379.3."

On motion of Rep. Mack, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Mack, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 728—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE STOKES

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 39:77, 461.1(B)(9)(b) and (C)(3), 461.4(B)(5) and (8)(b), (C), (D)(2), and (E), and 461.5, relative to the interim emergency board; to provide relative to procedures and requirements for obtaining consent of the legislature for the appropriation or borrowing of funds for an emergency or for capital outlay priority changes and adjustments; to provide relative to the authority, functions, and duties of the board; to provide relative to the authority, functions, and duties of the clerk of the House of Representatives and the secretary of the Senate; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to Original House Bill No. 728 by Representative Stokes

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 22, after "Paragraph, if" delete "the clerk or secretary uses" and insert "a member votes using"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 3, line 23, after "Paragraph, if" delete "the clerk or secretary uses" and insert "a member votes using"

On motion of Rep. Danahay, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Danahay, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

## **HOUSE BILL NO. 818—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MACK

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 15:143(14), 146(A)(3), (B)(1) and (3), and (C), 149.2(D), 150(A), (C), and (E) and to enact R.S. 15:148(D), 150(F), (G), and (H), 162(I) and 167(E), and to repeal R.S. 15:146(B)(4), (5), and (6) and (D), relative to indigent defender services; to amend provisions of the Louisiana Public Defender Act; to amend membership requirements for members of the State Public Defender Board; to reduce the number of members on the board; to provide with respect to the powers and duties of the board; to provide for the removal of board members; to provide for the authority of the board; to provide for rulemaking; to provide for the salaries of board members; to provide with respect to the hiring of executive staff positions for the board; to provide with respect to the dispersal of funds; to provide with respect to the delivery of indigent defender services; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported by substitute by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The substitute was read by title as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1137** (Substitute for House Bill No. 818 by Representative Mack)—  
BY REPRESENTATIVE MACK

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 15:146 and to enact R.S. 15:162(I), 166, and 167(E), relative to indigent defender services; to amend provisions of the Louisiana Public Defender Act; to provide for membership of the Louisiana Public Defender Board; to reduce the number of members on the board; to provide with respect to the powers and duties of the board; to provide relative to member qualifications; to provide with respect to the dispersal of funds; to provide with respect to the delivery of indigent defender services; to provide definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Mack, the substitute was adopted and became House Bill No. 1137 by Rep. Mack, on behalf of the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice, as a substitute for House Bill No. 818 by Rep. Mack.

Under the rules, lies over in the same order of business.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 842**—  
BY REPRESENTATIVE BROADWATER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 17:3021, 3023(A)(introductory paragraph), (1), (2)(a) and (b)(introductory paragraph), (4) through (10) and (B), 3023.1(C), (D), and (E), 3023.3, 3023.4(A), 3023.6, 3023.7, 3023.8, 3024, 3024.1, 3024.2, 3031, 3093(A) and (B), 3452, 3453.1(A) and (C), 3454(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), (6), (9), and (13), (C), and (D), 3455, and 3456, R.S. 36:651(BB), and R.S. 51:2211(A), 2212(2), 2213(D) and (F), and 2215(A) and to repeal R.S. 17:3022, 3023.9, 3025, 3035, and 3453, R.S. 36:651(M) and (CC), 801.4, and 802.23, and 51:2214(A) through (F); to abolish the MediFund Board and to transfer its powers and duties to the Board of Regents; to abolish the Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission and transfer its powers and duties to the Board of Regents; to abolish the Executive Board of the Louisiana Marine Consortium for Research and Education and transfer its powers and duties to the Board of Regents; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

#### HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 842 by Representative Broadwater

##### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, at the end of line 2, change "(2)(a)," to "(2)(a) and"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 3, after "(10) and (B)," delete the remainder of the line and delete lines 4 and 5 and at the beginning of line 6 delete "3456(A) and (B)," and insert "3023.1(C), (D), and (E), 3023.3, 3023.4(A), 3023.6, 3023.7, 3023.8, 3024, 3024.1, 3024.2, 3031, 3093(A) and (B), 3452, 3453.1(A) and (C), 3454(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), (6), (9), and (13), (C), and (D), 3455, and 3456,"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 7, after "repeal R.S." delete the remainder of the line and at the beginning of line 8, delete "801.4," and insert "17:3022, 3023.9, 3025, 3035, and 3453, R.S. 36:651(M) and (CC), 801.4, and"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 17, after "Section 1.(A)" delete the remainder of the line and delete line 18 and insert "R.S. 17:3452, 3453.1(A) and (C), 3454(A), (B)(introductory paragraph), (6), (9), and (13), (C), and (D), 3455, and 3456 are hereby amended and reenacted to read"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, delete line 7 and insert the following:

"§3453.1. Science and Education Advisory Council; creation; membership; duties

A. The Science and Education Advisory Council is hereby created to provide advice and information as requested by the ~~executive~~ board.

\* \* \*

C. The advisory council shall meet as necessary to respond to requests from the ~~executive~~ board as well as to provide the board with the benefit of perspectives represented on the council."

##### AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 6, at the beginning of line 4, change "Section 1.(A)" to "Section 3.(A)"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 6, at the end of line 4, change "(2)(a)," to "(2)(a) and"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 6, line 5, after "(10) and (B)," delete the remainder of the line and delete line 6 and insert "3023.1(C), (D), and (E), 3023.3, 3023.4(A), 3023.6, 3023.7, 3023.8, 3024, 3024.1, 3024.2, 3031, and 3093(A) and (B) are hereby amended and"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 6, line 8, after "§3021." delete "Board; purpose" and insert "Louisiana student financial assistance; Board of Regents to administer"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 6, line 13, after "Chapter as" delete "board, is to" and insert "the board, shall"

##### AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 6, delete line 17

##### AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 8, line 18, after "purposes of" delete the remainder of the line and insert "this Chapter."

##### AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 9, delete lines 3 through 29 and on page 10, delete lines 1 through 23 and insert the following:

"§3023.1. Credit unions, savings and loan associations, schools and insurance companies as lending agencies

\* \* \*

C. Savings and loan associations in Louisiana shall be empowered to make student loans guaranteed by the ~~commission~~

board up to five percent of their assets in accordance with the provisions of any federal law relating to federally insured student loan programs.

D. Postsecondary schools in Louisiana shall be empowered to make student loans guaranteed by the ~~commission~~ board in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Higher Education Act of 1965 as amended or as hereafter amended.

E. Insurance companies domiciled, licensed, or registered to do business and subject to examination and supervision by an agency of the state shall be empowered to make student loans guaranteed by the ~~commission~~ board pursuant to the provisions of applicable state laws and the provisions of the Federal Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended or hereafter amended.

§3023.3. Loan of reserve funds

The ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ is empowered to board may authorize the granting of guaranteed student loans made pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter out of reserve funds of said ~~commission~~ available to the board for such purpose, and shall have the authority to may sell or discount, or both, said such loans to banks, credit unions, and other authorized lending institutions, at such consideration and upon such terms as may be agreed upon by the ~~commission~~ board.

§3023.4. Student loan guarantees

A. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, the ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ is hereby authorized to board may guarantee loans made to students attending or planning to attend institutions of higher education, including graduate, professional, vocational, business, or technical education, subject to the conditions, limitations, reinsurance provisions and in accordance with the terms and provisions of and within the amounts established by 20 U.S.C. §1071 et seq., or in accordance with the provisions of any federal law or regulations relating to student loan guarantee or insurance programs, provided that the aggregate value of all loans guaranteed and outstanding at any one time shall not exceed fifteen times the total value of funds, investments, properties, and other assets of the ~~commission~~ available to the board for such purpose, except that this guarantee may be further expanded by use of federal credit.

\* \* \*

§3023.6. Age does not bar loan

Any person otherwise qualifying for a loan guaranteed by the ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ board shall not be disqualified by reason of his being under the age of twenty-one, and for the purpose of applying for, receiving, and repaying such a loan, any such person, notwithstanding the provisions of any law to the contrary, shall be deemed to have full legal capacity to act and shall have all the rights, powers, privileges, and obligations of a person of full age with respect thereto.

§3023.7. Tax exemption

All property and income of the ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ board used exclusively for the purposes of this Chapter shall be exempt from all taxes and assessments.

§3023.8. Examination by commissioner of financial institutions

The ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ shall be board in its actions pursuant to this Chapter is subject to examination by the commissioner of financial institutions, but shall not be deemed to be a banking organization nor be required to pay a fee for any such supervision or examination. The ~~commission~~ board shall make an annual report of its condition to the governor, the

legislature, and the commissioner of financial institutions on or before June 30 ~~thirtieth~~.

§3024. Acceptance and use of funds

The ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ board shall accept any contributions or subsidies made to it from state funds and shall use the funds to meet administrative expenses for any of its purposes and to provide a reserve fund to guarantee loans made pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter and to pay interest on guaranteed loans, as provided by R.S. 17:3023.

§3024.1. Student loans as security for deposit of public funds

Notes representing loans to students which are guaranteed by this ~~commission~~ board in accordance with a contract agreement under the provisions of this Chapter, may be pledged as collateral security for deposit of public funds as required in R.S. 39:403 and R.S. 39:1221.

§3024.2. Appropriation for guaranteed student loan program

The legislature shall annually appropriate sufficient funds to pay those eligible claims resulting from the guarantee of student loans by the ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ board under this Chapter, but only to the extent that anticipated federal reinsurance or reimbursement payments pursuant to 20 U.S.C. §1071 et seq., and any other monies available to the ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ board for such purpose are insufficient to pay such claims.

§3031. State student incentive grant; federal participation

A. The ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ is empowered to board may administer the state student incentive grant program for student financial aid as provided in Title IV of the Federal Higher Education Act, as amended, and to prescribe appropriate rules and regulations applicable thereto. The ~~commission~~ is authorized to board may enter into contracts or agreements with the federal government for their financial participation in the program on such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon by the ~~commission~~ board.

B. The ~~commission~~ is authorized to board may implement a program to train and further acquaint administrators of financial aid and assistance with the federal and state programs of student financial aid, pursuant to the Federal Higher Education Act as amended by Public Law 94-482. The ~~commission~~ board shall design and develop this program in consultation with the statewide financial aid administrators association. The ~~commission~~ board may provide appropriate rules and regulations in order to execute this provision. The ~~commission~~ is authorized to board may enter into contracts or agreements with the federal government for their financial participation in the program on such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon by the ~~commission~~ board.

\* \* \*

§3093. Louisiana Tuition Trust Authority; creation; powers

A. There is hereby created the Louisiana Tuition Trust Authority, which, under the authority of the Board of Regents, shall have the powers enumerated in this Chapter.

B.(1) The Louisiana Tuition Trust Authority shall consist of be governed by the ~~Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission~~ Board of Regents, except as modified by Paragraph (2) of this Subsection, and hereinafter hereafter in this Chapter shall be referred to as the authority. The authority shall operate under the same laws, rules, and guidelines and with the same officer selection and employment policies as the ~~commission~~ Board of Regents, except



when inconsistent with this Chapter. The commissioner of higher education or his designee shall serve as chairman of the authority.

(2) The membership of the authority shall consist of the following persons:

(a) The members of the Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission exclusive of the two persons appointed by the governor from names submitted by the Louisiana Bankers' Association Board of Regents.

(b) The commissioner of higher education or his designee.

(c) An officer of a bank in Louisiana who is a member of the Louisiana Bankers' Association and who is nominated by the association and appointed by the governor.

(⇌) (d) One member of the House of Representatives appointed by the speaker and one member of the Senate appointed by the president.

(⊕) (e) The state treasurer who shall be an ex officio voting member of the authority.

(3) The authority shall meet at least annually at the call of the chairman and at such other times as the chairman or the authority determines necessary. The authority chairman may establish and delegate to an executive committee such duties and responsibilities as the authority determines appropriate, except that the authority may not delegate to the executive committee the final determination of the rate of interest to be paid on education savings accounts of record at the close of the calendar year. Upon such delegation, the executive committee shall have the authority to act pursuant to such delegation without further approval or action by the authority.

(4) A majority of the authority shall constitute a quorum of the authority, and the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present shall be necessary for any action taken by the authority. A majority of the executive committee shall constitute a quorum of the executive committee, and the affirmative vote of a majority of the executive committee members present shall be necessary for any action taken by the executive committee. No vacancy in the membership of the authority or the executive committee shall impair the rights of a quorum to exercise all rights and perform all duties of the authority or the executive committee respectively."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 11, delete line 9 and insert the following:

"(C) R.S. 17:3022, 3023.9, 3025, and 3035 are hereby repealed in their entirety."

On motion of Rep. Nancy Landry, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Nancy Landry, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

#### **HOUSE BILL NO. 881—** BY REPRESENTATIVE JAY MORRIS AN ACT

To enact R.S. 17:3351(J), relative to the public postsecondary education management boards; to require each public postsecondary education management board annually to report to the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget and to publish on its website specified information relative to research projects and grants; to provide an annual deadline for such reporting and publication; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Education.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

#### **HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Education to Original House Bill No. 881 by Representative Jay Morris

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 5, after "and" and before "to provide" change "initiatives;" to "grants;"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 13, change "J." to "J.(1)"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 16, after "project" delete the remainder of the line and insert "and grant."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, line 1, change "(1) A" to "(a) A brief and general"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, line 1, after "or" and before "including" change "initiative," to "grant."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, delete lines 3 through 6 in their entirety and insert the following:

"(b) The amount of state general fund monies or dedicated state funds spent on the project or grant."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, line 7, change "(3) The" to "(c) A brief and general description of the"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, line 8, change "initiative." to "grant."

#### AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 2, delete lines 9 and 10 in their entirety and insert the following:

"(2) In addition to the information required by Paragraph (1) of this Subsection, each institution shall provide a total amount of state dollars spent on research during the prior fiscal year regardless of the means of finance."

On motion of Rep. Nancy Landry, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Nancy Landry, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

#### **HOUSE BILL NO. 896—** BY REPRESENTATIVE GAROFALO AN ACT

To enact R.S. 24:15, relative to the legislature; to authorize a means other than mail for transmission of documents to and from members of the legislature; to provide for the authority of the clerical officers of the legislature with respect thereto; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on House and Governmental Affairs.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on House and Governmental Affairs to Original House Bill No. 896 by Representative Garofalo

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 20, between "99.12," and "99.36," insert "and"

On motion of Rep. Danahay, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Danahay, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 906—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVES ARMES AND BILLIOT  
AN ACT

To enact Part XIII of Chapter 26 of Title 17 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 17:3399.21 through 3399.24, relative to postsecondary education services for homeless youth and foster youth; to require each public postsecondary education institution to designate a homeless and foster student liaison and to provide for his responsibilities; to authorize the institutions to provide for these students with respect to residency status and housing; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported favorably by the Committee on Education.

On motion of Rep. Nancy Landry, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 926—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE DWIGHT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:966(B)(4), relative to the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Law; to provide penalties for possession of heroin combined with fentanyl or any of its analogues; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice.

The committee amendments were read as follows:

**HOUSE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by House Committee on Administration of Criminal Justice to Original House Bill No. 926 by Representative Dwight

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 12, change "ninety-nine" to "fifty"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 17, after "to" delete the remainder of the line and insert "imprisonment for not less than thirty nor more than ninety-nine years at hard labor without"

On motion of Rep. Mack, the amendments were adopted.

On motion of Rep. Mack, the bill, as amended, was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 1136** (Substitute for House Bill No. 394 by Representative Lopinto)—  
BY REPRESENTATIVE LOPINTO  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:41(B), relative to vital records; to authorize the disclosure of data from birth and death certificates to law enforcement; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Hoffmann, the bill was ordered engrossed and passed to its third reading.

**House Bills and Joint Resolutions on Third Reading and Final Passage**

The following House Bills and Joint Resolutions on third reading and final passage were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**HOUSE BILL NO. 31—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE SHADOIN  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 1:55(E)(1)(h), relative to legal holidays; to establish the Friday of the Watermelon Festival as a legal holiday in the parish of Union; to authorize the clerk of court of the Third Judicial District Court to close the clerk's office in observance of the legal holiday; to provide for an exception; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Shadoin sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Shadoin to Engrossed House Bill No. 31 by Representative Shadoin

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 15, after "there" delete the remainder of the line and insert "are functions and duties related to an election that require the office to remain open."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, after line 16, add the following:

"Section 2. This Act shall become effective upon signature by the governor or, if not signed by the governor, upon expiration of the time for bills to become law without signature by the governor, as provided by Article III, Section 18 of the Constitution of Louisiana. If vetoed by the governor and subsequently approved by the legislature, this Act shall become effective on the day following such approval."

On motion of Rep. Shadoin, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Shadoin moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Emerson	Johnson, R.
Abraham	Falconer	Jones

Adams	Foil	Landry, T.
Amedee	Franklin	Leger
Anders	Gaines	Leopold
Armes	Garofalo	Lyons
Bacala	Gisclair	Mack
Bagley	Glover	Magee
Bagneris	Hall	McFarland
Berthelot	Harris, J.	Miguez
Billiot	Harris, L.	Miller, D.
Bishop	Havard	Miller, G.
Bouie	Hazel	Moreno
Broadwater	Hensgens	Morris, Jay
Brown, C.	Hilferty	Pearson
Brown, T.	Hill	Pierre
Carmody	Hodges	Pope
Carter, G.	Hoffmann	Price
Carter, R.	Hollis	Pugh
Carter, S.	Horton	Pylant
Chaney	Howard	Reynolds
Coussan	Hunter	Schexnayder
Cox	Huval	Seabaugh
Cromer	Ivey	Shadoin
Danahay	Jackson	Smith
Davis	James	Thibaut
DeVillier	Jefferson	White
Dwight	Jenkins	Willmott
Edmonds	Johnson, M.	Zeringue

Total - 87

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Abramson	LeBas	Richard
Carpenter	Lopinto	Schroder
Connick	Marcelle	Simon
Guinn	Montoucet	Stokes
Henry	Morris, Jim	Talbot
Landry, N.	Norton	

Total - 17

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Shadoin moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**Suspension of the Rules**

Rep. Mike Johnson moved to suspend House Rule No. 10.7 to allow him to record his vote on House Bill No. 31 because he was absent from the chamber, which motion was agreed to.

**Consent to Correct a Vote Record**

Rep. Mike Johnson requested the House consent to record his vote on final passage of House Bill No. 31 as yea, which consent was unanimously granted.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 68—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES BACALA AND BERTHELOT  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 9:2603(B)(4)(a), relative to electronic signatures; to provide for the use of electronic signatures on petitions for certain protective orders and restraining orders; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Bacala moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Gaines	Leger
Abraham	Garofalo	Leopold
Adams	Gisclair	Lopinto
Amedee	Glover	Lyons
Anders	Guinn	Mack
Armes	Hall	Magee
Bacala	Harris, J.	McFarland
Bagley	Harris, L.	Miguez
Bagneris	Havard	Miller, D.
Berthelot	Hazel	Miller, G.
Billiot	Henry	Montoucet
Bishop	Hensgens	Moreno
Broadwater	Hilferty	Morris, Jay
Brown, C.	Hill	Pearson
Brown, T.	Hodges	Pope
Carmody	Hoffmann	Price
Carter, G.	Hollis	Pugh
Carter, R.	Horton	Pylant
Carter, S.	Howard	Reynolds
Chaney	Hunter	Richard
Coussan	Huval	Schexnayder
Cox	Ivey	Seabaugh
Cromer	Jackson	Shadoin
Danahay	James	Simon
Davis	Jefferson	Smith
DeVillier	Jenkins	Talbot
Dwight	Johnson, M.	Thibaut
Edmonds	Johnson, R.	White
Emerson	Jones	Willmott
Falconer	Landry, N.	Zeringue
Foil	Landry, T.	
Franklin	LeBas	

Total - 94

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Abramson	Marcelle	Schroder
Bouie	Morris, Jim	Stokes
Carpenter	Norton	
Connick	Pierre	

Total - 10

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Bacala moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 70—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE TERRY BROWN  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 33:455, relative to mayors' courts; to establish a mayor's court in the village of Creola in Grant Parish; to provide for the territorial jurisdiction of the court; to provide for the powers and authority of the mayor as magistrate of the court and other officers of the court; to provide relative to subject matter jurisdiction of the court; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Terry Brown moved the final passage of the bill.

Page 12 HOUSE

17th Day's Proceedings - April 11, 2016

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker Foil Leger
Abraham Franklin Leopold
Abramson Gaines Lopinto
Adams Garofalo Lyons
Amedee Gisclair Mack
Anders Guinn Magee
Armes Hall McFarland
Bagley Harris, J. Miguez
Bagneris Harris, L. Miller, D.
Berthelot Havard Miller, G.
Billiot Hazel Montoucet
Bishop Henry Moreno
Bouie Hensgens Morris, Jay
Broadwater Hilferty Pearson
Brown, C. Hill Pierre
Brown, T. Hodges Pope
Carmody Hoffmann Price
Carter, G. Hollis Pugh
Carter, R. Howard Pylant
Carter, S. Huval Reynolds
Chaney Ivey Richard
Coussan Jackson Schexnayder
Cox James Seabaugh
Cromer Jefferson Shadoin
Danahay Jenkins Simon
Davis Johnson, M. Smith
DeVillier Johnson, R. Talbot
Dwight Jones Thibaut
Edmonds Landry, N. White
Emerson Landry, T. Willmott
Falconer LeBas Zeringue

Total - 93

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Bacala Horton Norton
Carpenter Hunter Schroder
Connick Marcelle Stokes
Glover Morris, Jim

Total - 11

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Terry Brown moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 76— BY REPRESENTATIVE HAVARD AN ACT

To enact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 404(F), relative to jury commissions; to provide for the functions of the jury commission in the parishes of East Feliciana and West Feliciana; to transfer the functions of the jury commission to the clerks of court of East Feliciana Parish and West Feliciana Parish; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Havard moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker Franklin LeBas
Abraham Gaines Leger
Adams Garofalo Leopold
Amedee Gisclair Lopinto
Anders Glover Lyons
Armes Guinn Mack
Bacala Hall Magee
Bagley Harris, J. McFarland
Bagneris Harris, L. Miguez
Berthelot Havard Miller, D.
Billiot Hazel Miller, G.
Bishop Henry Montoucet
Bouie Hensgens Moreno
Broadwater Hilferty Morris, Jay
Brown, C. Hill Pearson
Brown, T. Hodges Pierre
Carmody Hoffmann Pope
Carter, G. Hollis Price
Carter, R. Horton Pugh
Carter, S. Howard Pylant
Chaney Hunter Reynolds
Coussan Huval Richard
Cox Ivey Schexnayder
Cromer Jackson Shadoin
Danahay James Simon
Davis Jefferson Smith
DeVillier Jenkins Talbot
Dwight Johnson, M. Thibaut
Edmonds Johnson, R. White
Emerson Jones Willmott
Falconer Landry, N. Zeringue
Foil Landry, T.

Total - 95

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Abramson Marcelle Schroder
Carpenter Morris, Jim Seabaugh
Connick Norton Stokes

Total - 9

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Havard moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 91— BY REPRESENTATIVE HILL AN ACT

To enact R.S. 33:455, relative to mayors' courts; to establish a mayor's court in the village of Elizabeth in Allen Parish; to provide for territorial jurisdiction; to provide for the powers and authority of the mayor as magistrate of the court and other officers of the court; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Hill moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Franklin	Leopold
Abraham	Gaines	Lopinto
Adams	Garofalo	Lyons
Amedee	Gisclair	Mack
Anders	Guinn	Magee
Armes	Hall	McFarland
Bacala	Harris, J.	Miguez
Bagley	Harris, L.	Miller, D.
Bagneris	Havard	Miller, G.
Berthelot	Hazel	Montoucet
Billiot	Henry	Moreno
Bishop	Hensgens	Morris, Jay
Bouie	Hilferty	Pearson
Broadwater	Hill	Pierre
Brown, C.	Hodges	Pope
Brown, T.	Hoffmann	Price
Carmody	Hollis	Pugh
Carter, G.	Horton	Pylant
Carter, R.	Howard	Reynolds
Carter, S.	Hunter	Richard
Chaney	Huval	Schexnayder
Coussan	Ivey	Seabaugh
Cox	Jackson	Shadoin
Cromer	James	Simon
Danahay	Jefferson	Smith
Davis	Jenkins	Talbot
DeVillier	Johnson, R.	Thibaut
Dwight	Jones	White
Edmonds	Landry, N.	Willmott
Emerson	Landry, T.	Zeringue
Falconer	LeBas	
Foil	Leger	

Total - 94

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Abramson	Johnson, M.	Schroder
Carpenter	Marcelle	Stokes
Connick	Morris, Jim	
Glover	Norton	

Total - 10

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Hill moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 92—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE JAMES

**AN ACT**

To repeal R.S. 13:1000.10, 1415, 2002.1, 2488.40, and 2489.1, relative to warrant recall fees to fund a misdemeanor detention facility in East Baton Rouge Parish; to repeal statutory authority for the levying and collection of such fees.

Read by title.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. James, the bill was returned to the calendar.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.26(A), Rep. James gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 92 from the calendar on Thursday, April 14, 2016.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 136—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MACK

**AN ACT**

To amend and reenact R.S. 15:168(B)(1), relative to the judicial district indigent defender fund; to extend the period of time in which the special cost assessed in criminal cases in each judicial district court shall be collected for the district indigent defender fund; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Mack sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Mack to Engrossed House Bill No. 136 by Representative Mack

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 19, change "2020," to "2017,"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 1, change "2020" to "2017"

On motion of Rep. Mack, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Mack moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Foil	LeBas
Abraham	Franklin	Leger
Adams	Gaines	Leopold
Amedee	Garofalo	Lopinto
Anders	Gisclair	Lyons
Armes	Guinn	Mack
Bacala	Hall	Magee
Bagley	Harris, J.	McFarland
Bagneris	Harris, L.	Miguez
Berthelot	Havard	Miller, D.
Billiot	Hazel	Miller, G.
Bishop	Henry	Montoucet
Bouie	Hensgens	Moreno
Broadwater	Hilferty	Morris, Jay
Brown, C.	Hill	Pearson
Brown, T.	Hodges	Pierre
Carmody	Hoffmann	Pope
Carter, G.	Hollis	Price
Carter, R.	Horton	Pugh
Carter, S.	Howard	Pylant
Chaney	Huval	Reynolds
Coussan	Ivey	Schexnayder
Cox	Jackson	Seabaugh
Cromer	James	Shadoin
Danahay	Jefferson	Smith
Davis	Jenkins	Stokes
DeVillier	Johnson, M.	Talbot
Dwight	Johnson, R.	Thibaut

Page 14 HOUSE

17th Day's Proceedings - April 11, 2016

Edmonds Jones White
Emerson Landry, N. Willmott
Falconer Landry, T. Zeringue
Total - 93

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Abramson Hunter Richard
Carpenter Marcelle Schroder
Connick Morris, Jim Simon
Glover Norton
Total - 11

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Mack moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 513—
BY REPRESENTATIVE GARY CARTER
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:2740.27(K), relative to Orleans Parish; to provide relative to the Algiers Development District; to provide relative to the powers and duties of the district; to authorize the legislative auditor to audit contracts the district enters for certain purposes; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Gary Carter sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Gary Carter to Engrossed House Bill No. 513 by Representative Gary Carter

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 5, after "purposes;" insert "to provide limitations;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 14, after "K." insert "(1)"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 1, after "contracts." delete the remainder of the line and insert the following:

"However, no private entity shall be considered a public or quasi public entity or a public body as a result of entering into a contract with the district or as a result of receiving or expending funds of or on behalf of the district.

(2) No provision of this Subsection"

On motion of Rep. Gary Carter, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Gary Carter moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker Franklin Leger
Abraham Gaines Leopold
Adams Gisclair Lopinto
Amedee Glover Lyons
Anders Guinn Mack
Armes Hall Magee
Bacala Harris, L. McFarland
Bagley Havard Miguez
Bagneris Hazel Miller, D.
Berthelot Henry Miller, G.
Billiot Hensgens Montoucet
Bishop Hilferty Moreno
Bouie Hill Morris, Jay
Broadwater Hodges Pearson
Brown, C. Hoffmann Pierre
Brown, T. Hollis Pope
Carmody Horton Price
Carter, G. Howard Pugh
Carter, R. Hunter Pylant
Carter, S. Huval Richard
Chaney Ivey Schexnayder
Coussan Jackson Seabaugh
Cox James Shadoin
Cromer Jefferson Simon
Danahay Jenkins Smith
Davis Johnson, M. Stokes
DeVillier Johnson, R. Talbot
Dwight Jones Thibaut
Edmonds Landry, N. White
Emerson Landry, T. Willmott
Foil LeBas Zeringue
Total - 93

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Abramson Garofalo Norton
Carpenter Harris, J. Reynolds
Connick Marcelle Schroder
Falconer Morris, Jim
Total - 11

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Gary Carter moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 549—
BY REPRESENTATIVE JACKSON
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 13:844, to enact R.S. 13:844.1, and to repeal R.S. 9:5217 and R.S. 44:181.4, relative to clerks of court; to provide for fees of clerks as ex officio recorders; to provide for a fee schedule; to provide definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Jackson sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Jackson to Engrossed House Bill No. 549 by Representative Jackson

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete lines 17 through 20 in their entirety and on page 2, delete lines 1 through 3 in their entirety and insert the following:

"(b) For two page documents, seventy-five dollars.

(c) For three to five page documents, one hundred dollars.

(d) For six to fifteen page documents, one hundred seventy-five dollars.

(e) For sixteen to thirty page documents, two hundred seventy-five dollars.

(f) For thirty-one to forty page documents, three hundred seventy-five dollars.

(g) For forty-one to fifty page documents, four hundred seventy-five dollars.

(h) For documents in excess of fifty pages, four hundred seventy-five dollars for the first fifty pages and ten dollars for each subsequent page."

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, at the beginning of line 4, change "(h)" to "(i)"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 6, after "privilege." delete the remainder of the line and delete line 7 in its entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 3, at the beginning of line 12, change "D.(1)" to "D.(†)"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 3, delete lines 16 and 17 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 4, line 5, after "recorders" and before "may" insert "or ex officio notaries public"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 4, line 15, change "Subsection A of this Section" to "R.S. 13:844"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 4, line 17, change "Subsection A of this Section" to "R.S. 13:844"

On motion of Rep. Jackson, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Jay Morris sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Jay Morris to Engrossed House Bill No. 549 by Representative Jackson

AMENDMENT NO. 1

Delete House Floor Amendment No. 1 by Representative Jackson (#2515) adopted by the House of Representatives on April 11, 2016

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, delete lines 17 through 20 in their entirety and on page 2, delete lines 1 through 3 in their entirety and insert the following:

"(b) For two page documents, seventy-five dollars.

(c) For three to five page documents, eighty-five dollars.

(d) For six to fifteen page documents, one hundred twenty-five dollars.

(e) For sixteen to thirty page documents, two hundred twenty-five dollars.

(f) For thirty-one to forty page documents, three hundred twenty-five dollars.

(g) For forty-one to fifty page documents, four hundred twenty-five dollars.

(h) For documents in excess of fifty pages, four hundred seventy-five dollars for the first fifty pages and five dollars for each subsequent page."

Rep. Jay Morris moved the adoption of the amendments.

Rep. Jackson objected.

By a vote of 13 yeas and 80 nays, the amendments were rejected.

Rep. Jackson moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Emerson	Landry, T.
Abraham	Falconer	LeBas
Adams	Foil	Lopinto
Amedee	Franklin	Lyons
Anders	Gaines	Mack
Armes	Garofalo	Magee
Bacala	Gisclair	McFarland
Bagley	Glover	Miller, D.
Bagneris	Hall	Montoucet
Berthelot	Harris, J.	Moreno
Billiot	Havard	Norton
Bishop	Hazel	Pierre
Bouie	Hilferty	Pope
Broadwater	Hill	Pugh
Brown, C.	Hoffmann	Reynolds
Brown, T.	Howard	Richard
Carmody	Hunter	Schexnayder
Carter, G.	Huval	Shadoin
Chaney	Jackson	Smith
Coussan	James	Stokes
Cox	Jefferson	Thibaut
Danahay	Jenkins	White
Davis	Johnson, R.	Zeringue
Dwight	Jones	
Edmonds	Landry, N.	
Total - 73		

**NAYS**

Carter, R.	Hodges	Pearson
Carter, S.	Hollis	Pylant
Cromer	Horton	Seabaugh
DeVillier	Ivey	Simon

Page 16 HOUSE

17th Day's Proceedings - April 11, 2016

Guinn
Harris, L.
Henry
Hensgens
Total - 22
Miguez
Miller, G.
Morris, Jay
Morris, Jim
Talbot
Willmott

ABSENT

Abramson
Carpenter
Connick
Total - 9
Johnson, M.
Leger
Leopold
Marcelle
Price
Schroder

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Jackson moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

Consent to Correct a Vote Record

Rep. Hodges requested the House consent to correct her vote on final passage of House Bill No. 549 from yea to nay, which consent was unanimously granted.

HOUSE BILL NO. 627—
BY REPRESENTATIVE JACKSON
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:441(A)(2) and (3) and Section 2 of Act No. 13 of the 2013 Regular Session of the Legislature and to enact R.S. 33:441(A)(4), relative to court costs assessed by mayor's courts; to authorize an additional court cost to be assessed; to provide that a portion of such costs shall support the local public defender's office; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Jackson sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative Jackson to Engrossed House Bill No. 627 by Representative Jackson

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 6, after "effectiveness;" and before "and" insert "to extend the effectiveness of court costs authorized to be imposed in certain mayor's courts;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, at the end of line 14, after "on" insert "and after"

On motion of Rep. Jackson, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Jackson moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker
Abraham
Adams
Amedee
DeVillier
Dwight
Edmonds
Emerson
Landry, N.
Landry, T.
LeBas
Leopold

Anders
Armes
Bacala
Bagley
Bagneris
Berthelot
Billiot
Bishop
Bouie
Broadwater
Brown, C.
Brown, T.
Carmody
Carter, G.
Carter, R.
Carter, S.
Chaney
Coussan
Cox
Danahay
Davis
Franklin
Gaines
Garofalo
Gisclair
Glover
Hall
Harris, J.
Havard
Hensgens
Hilferty
Hill
Hodges
Hoffmann
Hollis
Hunter
Jackson
James
Jefferson
Jenkins
Johnson, R.
Jones
Lopinto
Lyons
Mack
Magee
McFarland
Miller, D.
Montoucet
Moreno
Morris, Jay
Pearson
Pierre
Price
Pugh
Reynolds
Richard
Schexnayder
Smith
Stokes
Thibaut
White

Total - 74

NAYS

Foil
Guinn
Harris, L.
Hazel
Henry
Horton
Howard
Ivey
Miguez
Miller, G.
Morris, Jim
Pope
Pylant
Seabaugh
Simon
Talbot
Willmott

Total - 17

ABSENT

Abramson
Carpenter
Connick
Cromer
Falconer
Huval
Johnson, M.
Leger
Marcelle
Norton
Schroder
Shadoin
Zeringue

Total - 13

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Jackson moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

Consent to Correct a Vote Record

Rep. Willmott requested the House consent to correct his vote on final passage of House Bill No. 627 from yea to nay, which consent was unanimously granted.

HOUSE BILL NO. 633—
BY REPRESENTATIVE ADAMS
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 26:351(2)(a) and (4)(a)(introductory paragraph), relative to the size of containers for beverages of high alcoholic content; to provide relative to the container sizes for certain alcoholic beverages sold or shipped in the state; to provide relative to the container size and configuration in each shipping case or container; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Motion

On motion of Rep. Adams, the bill was returned to the calendar.



**HOUSE BILL NO. 651—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE REYNOLDS  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 49:191(9)(b) and to repeal R.S. 49:191(6)(b), relative to the Department of Culture, Recreation and Tourism, including provisions to provide for the re-creation of the Department of Culture, Recreation and Tourism and the statutory entities made a part of the department by law; to provide for the effective termination date of all statutory authority for the existence of such statutory entities; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Reynolds moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Garofalo	Mack
Abraham	Gisclair	Magee
Amedee	Guinn	McFarland
Anders	Hall	Miguez
Armes	Harris, J.	Miller, D.
Bagley	Harris, L.	Miller, G.
Bagneris	Havard	Montoucet
Berthelot	Hazel	Morris, Jay
Billiot	Henry	Morris, Jim
Bishop	Hensgens	Pearson
Bouie	Hilferty	Pierre
Broadwater	Hill	Pope
Brown, C.	Hodges	Price
Brown, T.	Hoffmann	Pugh
Carmody	Hollis	Pylant
Carter, G.	Horton	Reynolds
Carter, R.	Howard	Richard
Carter, S.	Hunter	Schexnayder
Chaney	Huval	Seabaugh
Coussan	Ivey	Shadoin
Cox	James	Simon
Danahay	Jefferson	Smith
Davis	Jenkins	Stokes
DeVillier	Johnson, R.	Talbot
Dwight	Jones	Thibaut
Edmonds	Landry, T.	White
Emerson	LeBas	Willmott
Foil	Leopold	Zeringue
Franklin	Lopinto	
Gaines	Lyons	

Total - 88

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Abramson	Falconer	Marcelle
Adams	Glover	Moreno
Bacala	Jackson	Norton
Carpenter	Johnson, M.	Schroder
Connick	Landry, N.	
Cromer	Leger	

Total - 16

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Reynolds moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 665—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE SMITH  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 23:1711(G)(1), relative to unemployment compensation; to provide for the classification of employees; to increase the administrative penalties for the misclassification of employees; to provide relative to the failure to pay contributions; to increase penalties; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Smith, the bill was returned to the calendar.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.26(A), Rep. Smith gave notice of her intention to call House Bill No. 665 from the calendar on Thursday, April 14, 2016.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 766—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE BROADWATER  
AN ACT

To repeal Subpart B-44 of Part IV of Chapter 1 of Title 33 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, comprised of R.S. 33:130.811 through 130.814, relative to sustainable energy financing districts; to remove the authority granted to local governmental subdivisions to create such districts; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Motion**

On motion of Rep. Broadwater, the bill was returned to the calendar.

**Notice of Intention to Call**

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.26(A), Rep. Broadwater gave notice of his intention to call House Bill No. 766 from the calendar on Monday, April 18, 2016.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 834—**

BY REPRESENTATIVES BERTHELOT AND GREGORY MILLER  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 13:4521(A)(1) and (B) and to enact R.S. 13:4521(D), relative to court costs owed by governmental entities; to provide for temporary deferral and payment of such costs and collection of unpaid costs; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Berthelot sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Berthelot to Engrossed House Bill No. 834 by Representative Berthelot

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 14, after "thereof" and before the comma "," insert "and when the judgment taxes costs of the state, political subdivision, or agent, officer, or employee thereof against the opposing party in accordance with the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure Article 1920"

Page 18 HOUSE

17th Day's Proceedings - April 11, 2016

On motion of Rep. Berthelot, the amendments were adopted.  
Rep. Berthelot moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns of names: Mr. Speaker, Abraham, Abramson, Adams, Amedee, Anders, Armes, Bacala, Bagley, Berthelot, Billiot, Bishop, Bouie, Broadwater, Brown, C., Brown, T., Carter, G., Carter, R., Carter, S., Chaney, Coussan, Cox, Danahay, Davis, DeVillier, Dwight, Edmonds, Emerson, Falconer, Foil, Total - 90

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns of names: Bagneris, Carmody, Carpenter, Connick, Cromer, Total - 14

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.  
The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Berthelot moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 847— BY REPRESENTATIVE HILFERTY AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 36:209(O) and to repeal R.S. 36:802.22, relative to the Department of Culture, Recreation and Tourism; to provide relative to the powers, duties, functions, and responsibilities of the New Orleans City Park Improvement Association and its board of directors; to provide relative to the exercise of such powers, duties, functions, and responsibilities within the Department of Culture, Recreation and Tourism; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Hilferty moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table with 3 columns of names: Mr. Speaker, Abraham, Abramson, Adams, Amedee, Anders, Armes, Bacala, Bagley, Bagneris, Berthelot, Billiot, Bishop, Bouie, Broadwater, Brown, C., Brown, T., Carmody, Carter, G., Carter, R., Carter, S., Chaney, Coussan, Cox, Danahay, Davis, DeVillier, Dwight, Edmonds, Emerson, Falconer, Total - 93

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table with 3 columns of names: Carpenter, Connick, Cromer, Glover, Total - 11

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.  
The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Hilferty moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

HOUSE BILL NO. 855— BY REPRESENTATIVE HUVAL AN ACT

To enact R.S. 32:127.3, relative to golf carts; to authorize operation of golf carts on roadways within Lake Fausse Point State Park; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Huval sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Huval to Engrossed House Bill No. 855 by Representative Huval

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 3, after "Park;" and before "and" insert "to provide for definitions;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, after line 14, insert the following:

"C. For the purposes of this Section, "golf cart" means an electric vehicle that was originally intended for use off-road on golf courses and other green spaces and that has a maximum speed of twenty-five miles per hour."

On motion of Rep. Huval, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Huval moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Franklin	Lopinto
Abraham	Gaines	Lyons
Abramson	Garofalo	Mack
Adams	Gisclair	Magee
Amedee	Guinn	McFarland
Anders	Hall	Miguez
Armes	Harris, L.	Miller, D.
Bacala	Havard	Miller, G.
Bagley	Hazel	Montoucet
Bagneris	Henry	Moreno
Berthelot	Hensgens	Morris, Jay
Billiot	Hilferty	Morris, Jim
Bishop	Hill	Pearson
Bouie	Hodges	Pierre
Broadwater	Hoffmann	Pope
Brown, C.	Hollis	Price
Brown, T.	Horton	Pugh
Carmody	Howard	Pylant
Carter, G.	Hunter	Reynolds
Carter, R.	Huval	Richard
Carter, S.	Ivey	Schexnayder
Chaney	Jackson	Seabaugh
Coussan	James	Shadoin
Cox	Jefferson	Simon
Danahay	Jenkins	Smith
Davis	Johnson, M.	Stokes
DeVillier	Johnson, R.	Talbot
Dwight	Jones	Thibaut
Edmonds	Landry, N.	White
Emerson	Landry, T.	Willmott
Falconer	LeBas	Zeringue
Foil	Leopold	

Total - 95

**NAYS**

Total - 0

**ABSENT**

Carpenter	Glover	Marcelle
Connick	Harris, J.	Norton
Cromer	Leger	Schroder

Total - 9

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Huval moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 212—**  
BY REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS  
AN ACT

To enact R.S. 46:236.3(E)(6), relative to enforcement of support by income assignment, to provide for procedures for the issuance of lump sum payments; to provide definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Pierre, on behalf of the Legislative Bureau, sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Pierre on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed House Bill No. 212 by Representative Davis

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 16, following "the" and before "payment" change "lump sum" to "lump-sum"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, line 5, following "Paragraph" and before "when" change "only apply" to "apply only"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 8, following "penalties" and before "in" insert "provided for"

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Davis moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

**YEAS**

Mr. Speaker	Foil	Leopold
Abraham	Franklin	Lopinto
Abramson	Gaines	Lyons
Adams	Garofalo	Mack
Amedee	Gisclair	Magee
Anders	Hall	McFarland
Armes	Harris, L.	Miguez
Bacala	Havard	Miller, D.
Bagley	Hazel	Miller, G.
Bagneris	Henry	Montoucet
Berthelot	Hensgens	Moreno
Billiot	Hilferty	Morris, Jay
Bishop	Hill	Morris, Jim
Bouie	Hodges	Pearson
Broadwater	Hoffmann	Pierre
Brown, C.	Hollis	Pope
Brown, T.	Horton	Price
Carmody	Howard	Pugh
Carter, G.	Huval	Pylant
Carter, R.	Ivey	Reynolds

Page 20 HOUSE

17th Day's Proceedings - April 11, 2016

Carter, S.	Jackson	Schexnayder
Chaney	James	Seabaugh
Coussan	Jefferson	Shadoin
Cox	Jenkins	Simon
Danahay	Johnson, M.	Smith
Davis	Johnson, R.	Talbot
DeVillier	Jones	Thibaut
Dwight	Landry, N.	White
Edmonds	Landry, T.	Willmott
Emerson	LeBas	Zeringue
Total - 90		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Carpenter	Guinn	Norton
Connick	Harris, J.	Richard
Cromer	Hunter	Schroder
Falconer	Leger	Stokes
Glover	Marcelle	
Total - 14		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Davis moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 249—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE CARMODY  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1749.18(B)(introductory paragraph) and (4) and to enact R.S. 40:1749.18(B)(5), relative to underground utilities and facilities damage prevention; to amend the requirements for certification as a regional notification center; to provide for exceptions; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Carmody moved the final passage of the bill.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Foil	Leopold
Abraham	Gaines	Lopinto
Abramson	Garofalo	Lyons
Adams	Gisclair	Mack
Amedee	Guinn	Magee
Anders	Hall	McFarland
Armes	Harris, L.	Miguez
Bacala	Havard	Miller, D.
Bagley	Hazel	Miller, G.
Bagneris	Henry	Montoucet
Berthelot	Hensgens	Moreno
Billiot	Hilferty	Morris, Jay
Bishop	Hill	Morris, Jim
Bouie	Hodges	Pearson
Broadwater	Hoffmann	Pope
Brown, C.	Hollis	Price
Brown, T.	Horton	Pugh
Carmody	Howard	Pylant
Carter, G.	Huval	Reynolds
Carter, R.	Ivey	Richard
Carter, S.	Jackson	Schexnayder

Chaney	James	Seabaugh
Coussan	Jefferson	Shadoin
Cox	Jenkins	Smith
Danahay	Johnson, M.	Stokes
Davis	Johnson, R.	Talbot
DeVillier	Jones	Thibaut
Dwight	Landry, N.	White
Edmonds	Landry, T.	Willmott
Emerson	LeBas	Zeringue
Total - 90		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Carpenter	Glover	Norton
Connick	Harris, J.	Pierre
Cromer	Hunter	Schroder
Falconer	Leger	Simon
Franklin	Marcelle	
Total - 14		

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Carmody moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

**HOUSE BILL NO. 250—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE CARMODY  
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1749.12(introductory paragraph) and (6) and 1749.13(B)(1) and (4), relative to the administration and regulation of underground utilities and facilities; to amend definitions; to enumerate certain holidays; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

Rep. Pierre, on behalf of the Legislative Bureau, sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

**HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS**

Amendments proposed by Representative Pierre on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed House Bill No. 250 by Representative Carmody

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1 line 18, following "beginning of line" and before ", boring" change "auguring" to "augering"

On motion of Rep. Pierre, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. Carmody moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

**ROLL CALL**

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. Speaker	Franklin	Lopinto
Abraham	Gaines	Lyons
Abramson	Garofalo	Mack
Adams	Gisclair	Magee
Amedee	Guinn	McFarland
Anders	Hall	Miguez
Armes	Harris, L.	Miller, D.

Bacala	Havard	Miller, G.
Bagley	Hazel	Montoucet
Bagneris	Henry	Moreno
Berthelot	Hensgens	Morris, Jay
Billiot	Hilferty	Morris, Jim
Bishop	Hill	Pearson
Bouie	Hodges	Pierre
Broadwater	Hoffmann	Pope
Brown, C.	Hollis	Price
Brown, T.	Horton	Pugh
Carmody	Howard	Pylant
Carter, G.	Huval	Reynolds
Carter, R.	Ivey	Richard
Carter, S.	Jackson	Schexnayder
Chaney	James	Seabaugh
Coussan	Jefferson	Shadoin
Cox	Jenkins	Smith
Danahay	Johnson, M.	Stokes
Davis	Johnson, R.	Talbot
DeVillier	Jones	Thibaut
Dwight	Landry, N.	White
Edmonds	Landry, T.	Willmott
Emerson	LeBas	Zeringue
Foil	Leopold	

Total - 92

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Carpenter	Glover	Marcelle
Cornick	Harris, J.	Norton
Cromer	Hunter	Schroder
Falconer	Leger	Simon

Total - 12

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. Carmody moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on his own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

### Notice of Intention to Call

Pursuant to House Rule No. 8.26(A), Rep. Abramson gave notice of his intention to call House Bill Nos. 735, 737, 738, 756, 772, and 776 from the calendar on Wednesday, April 13, 2016.

#### HOUSE BILL NO. 747—

BY REPRESENTATIVE WHITE

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 32:408.1(A)(introductory paragraph) and to enact R.S. 32:408.1(B), relative to the issuance of cease and desist orders to persons administering driving skills tests in violation of law; to authorize the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, public safety services, to issue cease and desist orders to persons administering skills tests in violation of law; and to provide for related matters.

Called from the calendar.

Read by title.

Rep. White sent up floor amendments which were read as follows:

#### HOUSE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Representative White to Engrossed House Bill No. 747 by Representative White

#### AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, delete "R.S. 32:408.1(A)(introductory paragraph)" and insert "R.S. 32:408.1(introductory paragraph), (4), (5), and (6)"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, at the end of line 2, delete "R.S." and at the beginning of line 3, delete "32:408.1(B)" and insert "R.S. 32:408.1(B), (C), (D), (E), and (F)"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 4, after "law" and the semi-colon ";" insert "to prohibit or require certain actions relating to the administration of driving skills tests;"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, delete lines 9 and 10 in their entirety and insert the following:

"Section 1. "R.S. 32:408.1(introductory paragraph), (4), (5), and (6) are hereby amended and reenacted and R.S. 32:408.1(B), (C), (D), (E), and (F) are hereby enacted to read as follows:"

#### AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 2, delete lines 4 through 24 in their entirety and insert the following:

~~(4)B.~~ A driver applicant who takes and passes driving tests administered by an authorized third party shall provide evidence to the state licensing agency that he has successfully passed the driving tests administered by the third party on a form approved by the department.

~~(5)C.(1)~~ Any third party or ~~department~~ Department of Public Safety and Corrections, public safety services, employee authorized under the provisions of this Chapter to administer tests to applicants for commercial driver's licenses ~~who falsifies~~ shall not falsify information regarding test results or applicant qualification or ~~who~~ in any way ~~participates~~ participate in, ~~aids~~ aid, or ~~abets~~ abet the fraudulent testing or issuance to an applicant of a commercial driver's license or endorsement. ~~thereon~~ Any person who violates this Paragraph shall be liable under this Chapter for civil penalties of not less than five hundred nor more than five thousand dollars per act. Furthermore, the ~~department~~ Department of Public Safety and Corrections, public safety services, may establish procedures to void all transactions and any licenses issued as a result of such falsification or fraud, such procedures to be established pursuant to the Administrative Procedure Act. Any authorized third party tester suffering a sanction under the provisions of this Chapter shall forfeit his authorized third party testing status and contract and shall not qualify for such status henceforth.

(2) A third party tester or third party examiner with whom the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, public safety services, has a contract or to whom has issued a license shall administer the skills test for a commercial driver's license or an endorsement on a commercial driver's license in accordance with state and federal statutes and regulations and policies adopted by the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, public safety services, in accordance with such statutes and regulations.

D. A person or business shall not operate, advertise, or hold oneself or itself out as a third party tester or a third party examiner unless such person or business has a current contract with the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, public safety services, to operate as a third party tester or a third party examiner or is currently licensed by the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, public safety services, to operate as a third party tester or a third party examiner.

(6)E. The principal of the third-party examiner or tester who has or is seeking a contract with the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, public safety services, to administer commercial driving examinations and tests shall consent to, pass, and pay the costs of an annual background check."

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 2, at the beginning of line 25, change "(3)" to "F.(1)"

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 3, at the beginning of line 5, change "(4)" to "(2)"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 3, at the beginning of line 12, change "(5)" to "(3)"

On motion of Rep. White, the amendments were adopted.

Rep. White moved the final passage of the bill, as amended.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Table listing names of members who voted 'YEAS' in three columns: Mr. Speaker, Abraham, Abramson, Adams, Amedee, Anders, Bacala, Bagley, Berthelot, Billiot, Bishop, Bouie, Broadwater, Brown, C., Brown, T., Carmody, Carter, G., Carter, R., Carter, S., Chaney, Coussan, Cox, Cromer, Danahay, Davis, DeVillier, Dwight, Edmonds, Emerson, Foil, Franklin, Garofalo, Gislair, Glover, Guinn, Hall, Harris, J., Harris, L., Havard, Hazel, Henry, Hensgens, Hilferty, Hill, Hodges, Hoffmann, Hollis, Horton, Howard, Hunter, Huval, Ivey, Jackson, James, Jefferson, Jenkins, Johnson, M., Johnson, R., Jones, Landry, N., Landry, T., LeBas, Leger, Leopold, Lopinto, Lyons, Mack, Magee, McFarland, Miguez, Miller, D., Miller, G., Montoucet, Moreno, Morris, Jay, Morris, Jim, Pearson, Pierre, Pope, Price, Pugh, Pylant, Reynolds, Schexnayder, Seabaugh, Shadoin, Simon, Smith, Stokes, Talbot, Thibaut, White, Willmott, Zeringue

Total - 94

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Table listing names of members who were 'ABSENT' in three columns: Armes, Bagneris, Carpenter, Connick, Falconer, Gaines, Marcelle, Norton, Richard, Schroder

Total - 10

The Chair declared the above bill was finally passed.

The title of the above bill was read and adopted.

Rep. White moved to reconsider the vote by which the above bill was finally passed, and, on her own motion, the motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

Suspension of the Rules

On motion of Rep. Leger, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Petitions, Memorials, and Communications at this time.

Petitions, Memorials, and Communications

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read:

Message from the Senate

SENATE BILLS

April 11, 2016

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has finally passed the following Senate Bills:

Senate Bill Nos. 26, 56, 153, and 234

Respectfully submitted,

GLENN A. KOEPP Secretary of the Senate

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on First Reading

The following Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on first reading were taken up, read, and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

SENATE BILL NO. 26—

BY SENATOR ALLAIN

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Civil Code Arts. 655 and 656, relative to servitudes; to provide relative to natural servitudes; to provide relative to natural drainage, obligations of owners, and dominant and servient estates; to provide certain terms and effects; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

SENATE BILL NO. 56—

BY SENATOR JOHNS

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 40:1006(G), relative to the state prescription monitoring program; to provide for rulemaking regarding standards for prescription monitoring information; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

SENATE BILL NO. 153—

BY SENATOR CLAITOR

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:1788(B), relative to firearms; to provide regarding an identification number or other mark on a

firearm; to delete provisions relative to a presumption of guilt against a defendant in possession of a firearm with an identification number or mark that has been removed or altered; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**SENATE BILL NO. 234—**  
BY SENATOR JOHNS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 6:966.1(B), relative to the Additional Default Remedies Act; to provide relative to additional default remedies by certain debtors under certain secured transactions; to provide for the "Notice of Repossession"; to provide that no additional fees may be assessed for filing of the "Notice of Repossession"; to provide terms and conditions; and to provide for related matters.

Read by title.

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Cox, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Petitions, Memorials, and Communications at this time.

**Petitions, Memorials, and Communications**

The following petitions, memorials, and communications were received and read:

**Message from the Senate**

**ASKING CONCURRENCE IN  
SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS**

April 11, 2016

To the Honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed to inform your honorable body that the Senate has adopted and asks your concurrence in the following Senate Concurrent Resolutions:

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 51

Respectfully submitted,

GLENN A. KOEPP  
Secretary of the Senate

**Senate Concurrent Resolutions  
Lying Over**

The following Senate Concurrent Resolutions contained in the message were taken up and acted upon as follows:

**SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 51—**

BY SENATOR LONG

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend the Natchitoches Central High School boys basketball team on winning the 2016 Class 5A state championship.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Cox, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was concurred in.

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Edmonds, the rules were suspended in order to take up and consider Introduction of Resolutions, House and House Concurrent at this time.

**Introduction of Resolutions,  
House and House Concurrent**

The following members introduced the following entitled House and House Concurrent Resolutions, which were read the first time by their titles and placed upon the calendar for their second reading:

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 59—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE EDMONDS

A RESOLUTION

To commend Kenny Guillot on his induction into the Louisiana High School Sports Hall of Fame.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Edmonds, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 60—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE EDMONDS

A RESOLUTION

To commend M.L. Woodruff on his induction into the Louisiana High School Sports Hall of Fame.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Edmonds, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 63—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE MORENO

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To express sincere and heartfelt condolences upon the death of Will Smith, former defensive end for the New Orleans Saints.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Moreno, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

Ordered to the Senate.

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 64—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE LEGER

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To designate Wednesday, April 13, 2016, as LSU Day at the state capitol.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Leger, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

Ordered to the Senate.

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 65—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE LEGER

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend the Louisiana Restaurant Association upon the celebration of its seventieth anniversary.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Leger, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

Ordered to the Senate.

**HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 66—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE GAROFALO

**A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

To memorialize the United States Congress and the Louisiana Congressional Delegation to take such actions as are necessary to rectify the revenue sharing inequities between coastal and interior energy producing states.

Read by title.

On motion of Rep. Garofalo, and under a suspension of the rules, the resolution was adopted.

Ordered to the Senate.

**Privileged Report of the Committee on Enrollment**

April 11, 2016

To the honorable Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives:

I am directed by your Committee on Enrollment to submit the following report:

The following House Resolutions have been properly enrolled:

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 43—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE LYONS

**A RESOLUTION**

To commend Morning Star Missionary Baptist Church of Marrero upon its one hundredth year anniversary and to recognize its rich Christian tradition and history.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 51—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE SCHEXNAYDER

**A RESOLUTION**

To commend Sully Laiche, Al'Dontre Davis, Ben St. Pierre, and Jontre Kirklin for their outstanding performance and their selection to the Louisiana Sports Writers Association's Class 3A all-state football team and to recognize their accomplishments as extraordinary student athletes.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 52—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE CARMODY

**A RESOLUTION**

To commend Jerry Hunt upon winning the 2016 Chili for Children Louisiana State Chili Cook-off.

**HOUSE RESOLUTION NO. 53—**

BY REPRESENTATIVE LEOPOLD

**A RESOLUTION**

To commend Paul Andrew Solis for his many accomplishments.

Respectfully submitted,

CHRIS HAZEL  
Chairman

The above House Resolutions contained in the report were signed by the Speaker of the House and taken by the Clerk of the House to the Secretary of State in accordance with the rules of the House.

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Henry, the rules were suspended to permit the Committee on Appropriations to meet on Tuesday, April 12, 2016, at 9:00 A.M. instead of 10:00 A.M.

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Garofalo, the rules were suspended to permit the Committee on Civil Law and Procedure to meet on Tuesday, April 12, 2016, and consider the following legislative instruments that were not listed on the weekly committee schedule as required by House Rule 14.23:

House Bill No. 132

**Suspension of the Rules**

On motion of Rep. Havard, the rules were suspended to permit the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works to meet on Tuesday, April 12, 2016, and consider the following legislative instruments that were not listed on the weekly committee schedule as required by House Rule 14.23:

House Bill No. 853

**Leave of Absence**

Rep. Connick - 1 day

Rep. Marcelle - 1 day

Rep. Schroder - 1 day

**Adjournment**

On motion of Rep. Billiot, at 4:29 P.M., the House agreed to adjourn until Tuesday, April 12, 2016, at 2:00 P.M.

The Speaker of the House declared the House adjourned until 2:00 P.M., Tuesday, April 12, 2016.

ALFRED W. SPEER  
Clerk of the House